



# **MESSAGES OF LOVE** The Laurelville Collection



Channeled Messages for the LightBringers Celebration of Divine Love Pennsylvania, USA Laurelville Collection Copyright 2023 by Divine Love Sanctuary Foundation

All rights reserved

No part may be used or reproduced in any manner without written permission, except in the case of brief quotations as part of articles or reviews.

Published by Divine Love Sanctuary Foundation www.divinelovesanctuary.com

Trance Medium: Albert J. Fike Text Selection and Compilation: Carol Gallagher, Denise Mitchell, Tiffany Olmeda, Ashley Caron, Elaine Cheung, Jeanne Fike

Arrangement: Elaine Cheung, Ashley Caron

Cover Photo: Michael Willey

# Dedication

Kevin Patrick O'Neill 1956-2023



Dedicated to Kevin O'Neill, one of God's humble, quick-witted, and generous volunteers for his many years of outstanding service to growing the worldwide Divine Love Community!

Watch Kevin's tribute: https://youtu.be/zljtvNmVE1M

# Foreword

It's with great humility and gratitude that I write the foreword for this collection of messages associated with the LightBringers Celebration of Divine Love. The in-person gathering occurred at the Laurelville Retreat Center in Mount Pleasant, Pennsylvania, from the 12th through the 16th of October, 2023. It was a gathering of 65 in-person participants from the global Divine Love community, with more than 50 persons joining via livestream.

Since its inception, one of the core purposes of LightBringers Inc. has been to discover ways for those who seek the awakening and transformation of their souls through the power of God's Divine Love to co-create meaningful and impactful relationships and to be expressions of love and light. This beautiful global gathering of souls profoundly demonstrated this divinely expressed collaborative spirit. I have been incredibly blessed to witness the inspired weaving of so many diverse contributions from the mortal and spirit realms with such subtlety and intricacy to help create a truly transformative experience.

This collection of messages represents an integral part of the co-creative effort between God, the Beings of Light, and mortals. I want to express my heartfelt appreciation to Albert J. Fike, who acted as the designated medium for the gathering. His divinely developed gifts were essential in fulfilling God's purposes for our precious time together. I also thank the Divine Love Sanctuary Foundation for publishing this important collection of messages received through his instrumentality.

I sense that the spiritual light and love manifested through this event will continue to have powerful effects on the Earth and humankind as part of God's plan. I feel that this gathering produced even more profound impacts within the spirit realm that will reverberate and create positive changes within humankind and upon the Earth as God's Love and light continue to touch humanity in extraordinary ways in the days to come.

I sincerely hope that reading these messages may help you to expand your awareness of the unconditional Divine Love of our Creator that flowed so powerfully and abundantly during our brief but beautiful time together. May these messages remind you that you are part of a spiritual family whose collective heartbeat reverberates in harmony and rhythm with our Heavenly Creator's Essence of Divine Love.

May each of us be inspired every moment to bring much more light and love to the world through the touch of God's Divine Love upon our souls.

Bill Frase Cofounder and President, LightBringers Inc. October 27, 2023

# **Table of Contents**

Foreword	3
Guidance for DV Dozen at Laurelville	6
REJOICE!	8
Welcomes Us and Prepares Us for Laurelville	9
The Importance of What Each Individual Brings to the Circle	10
Blessing of Deep Healing as We Travel to Laurelville	12
Your World is About to Change	13
The Route You are About to Take Will Encompass the World	15
Affirms the Portal is Open	16
This Gathering Will Change Your Perspectives and Motivations to Carry You Forward	16
You Will Fly on the Breath of God to Awaken Many Souls	16
Your Desires and Expectations for a Special Blessing	17
Angels Are Ready and Waiting	19
Message and Al's Visions Received During the Retreat	20
Welcomes and Opens Laurelville Gathering	20
There is an Angel Assigned to Each One of Us	22
Al's Vision During the Opening Prayer	23
The Power of Your Will	26
Truth Will Grow from Your Soul to Your Mind	28
Open Your Souls Wide to God's Blessing and Love	29
We Are the Light and Shall Burn Bright	29
You Are the Listeners	30
Anything is Possible in Love	32
Anticipate the Dawning of a New Way of Living	33
Prepare for Changes that are Now Upon Us Spirit: Jesus	36
Implores Us to Unify in Purpose	39
Be in Holy Communion with God	41
Lifts Us Up in Prayer and Praise	42
Expresses Gratitude for All that was Accomplished	44
Encourages Us to Create More Circles of Light in the World	46
Al's Vision From Final Day	50
Post Retreat Messages – Guidance for Preparation	51
You are the Forerunners of the New World - Laurelville Epilogue	51

52
54
57
57
59
59
59
59
59
59

#### Pre-Retreat Messages – Guidance for Preparation

#### Guidance for DV Dozen at Laurelville

Spirit:	Orion
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 6, 2023
Location:	Sechelt, B.C.

I am Orion. The time comes close, my friends, for you to demonstrate your spiritual and soulful development with your brothers and sisters, to be that light that you are intended to be and that you are. For they need you, beloved souls. They need your light. They need what you have to give, your gifts, and all that may be demonstrated within this circle. The stage has been set. You have all made your arrangements and are on your way. These things that you have within you, within your soul will have the opportunity to shine in these days ahead.

My beloved friends, do not shirk from your responsibilities and do not doubt that there is much that you can give. Yet, we also ask for you to be humble, kind and generous with your brothers and sisters, loving at all times. For you and you alone can guard your own condition. We can protect you from outside influences and energetic conditions in the world but your inner condition is your responsibility. Thus your thoughts, actions and reactions which are a part of your daily life must be monitored, disciplined and expressed in accordance to the Laws of Love.

There will be many such gatherings in the future but this marks a precedence. This marks a beginning of a great campaign, a campaign that is orchestrated by God and is part of His plan for the salvation of humanity. It is for you to be an integral part of this plan, my beloved friends. That door is open. That opportunity is there waiting for you. I urge you to continue to listen to your own guidance. Continue to respond to the promptings of your soul so that you may fit in fluidly and beautifully with what is planned, what is coming. It is as much a test as it is a blessing. For this event is important. But because it is staged upon your Earth plane, there are many pitfalls and possibilities of failure in this upcoming effort. I do not wish to put a negative thought within you. I wish to encourage you to be vigilant and to listen, to truly be in alignment with God's Will. For when you do so, nothing can assail you and there will be great success. Even though some in the circle that is forming may not be in alignment with what is intended. When you as a group and you have been placed in various strategic positions as a group, come to the fore within this circle, then you are unassailable and the circle is unassailable.

Yes, there are many who are coming who are quite needy, in need of guidance and upliftment and support, of clarity and teaching, of all things that will help them along the path. You are there as well to give in accordance to your guidance, not in accordance to your willful ideas of what you must do. My beloved friends, it is important that you listen and are attuned. Despite all of the distractions that may come to some of you here, I suggest that you be at peace and that you listen. For we are by your side so very close that it will almost feel like we are in the flesh with you.

Listen and be attuned to what God gives to you in regard to resources and guidance, upliftment and light, protection. All these things are given freely. But unfortunately on your earthly plane, many are distracted and are not attuned fully with what can be given in the way of resources, upliftment and protection. Are you going to be one of those individuals, my beloved friends or are you going to be truly that individual in alignment, in the grace of God? For in this grace, much is possible. In this grace, you will feel unassailed, not distracted, but in the flow of what is meant to be. I know that each one of you wants this within yourself, within your expression and through you as you greet, gather and pray together.

Know that we are with you powerfully. We are with you and with all that come. Yet, if those who have been prepared as you have been prepared cannot overcome the distractions of the material world, then what might we do with those who come who are easily distracted. You must be a strength, a power within the group, steadfast in your ways, in your prayers, in your connection with God. In this way, others will feel the comfort, the power and the peace that you bring. The love will flow readily. No matter what you are doing within this time frame, it will flow and flow and flow. If there are times when you feel overwhelmed by the power and beauty of this flow, then I suggest that you retreat to your rooms and gather yourselves, center yourselves so that you may enter back into the fray refreshed and able to do the work that is intended. Indeed there is much to do. Indeed we have done much together, have we not, my beautiful friends? This may mark the beginning of a new level, a new stage of the work that we all accept and engage within. It is for you to prove this to be so, not in a way that you feel pressured and that you feel unworthy or that you feel put upon by us. No, this is not the way of harmony. Rather I am speaking in order to elicit and to spark the awareness within you, that you all have of the purpose that you carry, the way which that may flow within each of you which is individual and beautiful.

We ask you to listen, to be attuned, to be prayerful, to be centred in love, to be that light that you are and to enjoy with the immensity of your soul the great blessings that will flow upon all of you, upon this beautiful circle of light so that we may establish the highest and greatest outcomes in this time together. Not just you who are channels within this circle but there are many others who will be utilised, who will be attuned. This may surprise you with some but I say to you, love each one equally. Honour each one equally. Address each one as an equal. For you are all as equals in the eyes of God. You are all blessed and unique in wonderful ways. Together this intermingling of bright and beautiful souls must bring wondrous gifts and blessings to the world.

May God bless you on your journeys. May you be in the light always as you continue forth and may you know the grace of God with every footfall, with every moment, the peace, the beauty, the joy, the love, the light. All of this may be with you every step of the way. God bless you. I am your friend, Orion and I, too, will be with you, my friends, very close, very close as will my cohorts as we work together with the Celestial Angels and the bright spirits to make this an extraordinary event in your lives, one that you will not ever forget, ever. God bless you, my friends. My love is with you always, always.

2023-10-06-AF-Orion

#### **REJOICE!**

Spirit:	Keea Atta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 10, 2023
Location:	Pennsylvania, US

I am Keea Atta Kem. The angels rejoice at your coming together, these beautiful lights for God in loving harmony and communion, acknowledging the sisterhood and brotherhood that is forged out of God's Love that grows within each of your souls, expanding so powerfully within you, creating a beautiful light together. This harmony with it's hues and colors that blend from each of you creating a rainbow of light that sustains you all and will sustain those who are coming.

It is important that you continue to build upon this condition, this light together so that you may become a formidable force within the larger circle. Help us to be close to all who are present. Help God to bless each one powerfully, to awaken each one deeply, to bless each one profoundly with the power of His Touch upon the soul.

Where there is joy, where there is this deep bond of love, where this compatibility and beautiful intermingling of the gifts that you possess, the power of God's blessings through you is great. The wonderment of the light upon this world is a reflection of each of your efforts combined into one

beautiful force of love. The possibility of God working through you is great. Yes, we may accomplish this when you are at such distances away, but to do so while you are in the flesh adds a potency, a power to these gifts that is formidable and beautiful.

Oh, my beloved, beloved children of God, how blessed you are, how wonderful a light. How glorious the joy of your gathering together in this way. We rejoice! We rejoice at the accomplishment of this gathering of precious souls at this moment and in the moments to come.

You truly do not see what can be accomplished together. But you have an inkling, a feeling and some expectation of what this means and how this may unfold. Nourish that insight, that joy, that expectation. For your souls know and your souls rejoice in this knowing. You feel it welling up within you, encompassing your being in joy. The acknowledgement of God's great Hand in all of this, all of this, are the outcomes of many prayers and much work from your angel friends to bring together this formidable light into the world. Each of you are deeply blessed.

Remember that you need one another to accomplish this work together. Each brings its component, that part of the beautiful light that is needed to pierce the world and be the catalyst for great change. You will be added to with others and you will feel and know the power of God's blessings through you and amongst you. Be at peace, beloveds. Know that you are truly together for a purpose, an awakening, a deep blessing of the soul. In God's loving Arms you rest as you have followed His calling upon you and through you.

I am Keea and I love each one of you so dearly, so precious, so beautiful. So much of light is here as you gather together in loving communion with your Heavenly Father. God bless you. I love you, beloveds. I love you.

2023-10-10-AF-Keea Atta Kem

## Welcomes Us and Prepares Us for Laurelville

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 10, 2023
Location:	Pennsylvania, US

May you be blessed in the awakening, beloved souls. I am your brother and friend, Jesus. I come. I come to acknowledge your efforts and your coming together as a significant light in the world. You begin the unfolding of these blessings to come. You are the forerunners. You are the instruments of God to ignite the flames of love for all.

The power of your souls together is formidable. As you pray, be as one in the light of God's Love, you will know its blessings profound and deep. We will be with you for every moment. Your time is blessed, beloveds, a gift from God, a blessing that shall bring many other blessings to those you meet.

My love is with you. I am Jesus and I love you. I walk with you upon the stony ground of this world. You make the way smooth and easy to follow. God bless you. I love you, beautiful souls, children of God.

2023-10-10-AF-Jesus

## The Importance of What Each Individual Brings to the Circle

Spirit:	Seretta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 10, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Yes, there is a chemistry to the proximity of each individual to the other individual and what they emanate compared to what the other emanates. At times when these energies are blended together, it precipitates a different energy altogether. One that often is very beneficial in terms of blending these energies with one another. So, the way in which you sit together in circle, how you are together in prayer, is important because it makes for a harmonious condition. The emanations of each soul intermingling with the other souls create wondrous outcomes and blessings that can be utilised in many different ways.

When you pray together and you feel and sense that you must sit with this person or that person, it is for a reason. It helps to create a condition, a spiritual condition, that is beneficial to you and to them and to all in the circle. This is not always necessary, for sometimes prayers are simple heartfelt longings to God and have the purpose and desire to receive the great Love of God. This is, indeed, a high calling and an effort that is not wasted. But when you come together for a purpose, possibly to bring healing to the world, to bring upliftment and benefit to one and another within the circle, then, where you sit, how you comport yourself within the circle, the thoughts you have, what you are emanating at the time, your spiritual condition, plays a large part in what may come of your efforts together. These are on many different levels. For in the material level there is a chemistry, as you are well aware. On the spiritual level there is a chemistry. On the soul level there is a sort of chemistry, although it is very different from the other two.

Indeed, we wish for you to be aware of the soul, its interactions soul to soul, its interactions with God. For this is where the greatest light is created, the most powerful chemistry is accomplished. As you continue to be awakened to the soul awareness and aspects of the soul, then you will become attuned to these chemistries, if I may call it that, of the soul, the energetic interactions between soul to soul. These are the interactions that are most important, that bring the greatest of blessings. Although often you are merely aware of the spiritual chemistry, that of the metaphysical. This is important as well.

As for the material, being in harmony together, loving, honouring one another, helps to clear away any obstructions and conditions that may cause difficulties among you. As these levels come into alignment and the chemistries are in harmony, you are, indeed, in sync with one another. Then many, many beautiful blessings may flow, not only to you but through you, among you and out into the world.

Think of these things, my beloved, beautiful friends. What is it that you bring into a circle? What are your thoughts at this moment? What are your conditions at this moment? What is the longing within you at this moment? These things help to bring alignment and harmony among you. Be aware, as awareness is the key. For if you sit in ignorance, your minds are not in attunement with your soul and spirit. Then, rather than contribute much to the circle, you are receiving and benefiting, but it is important that you also become in alignment with what is required, what is needed at this time.

Although we do not expect you to know all of the aspects of this interchange, interconnection of various souls within a circle, it is important that you know within yourself the condition that you carry. Be aware of the thoughts that you have. Be aware of your physical condition, your spiritual condition, your soulful condition. In this way, our hope is that you make efforts to bring these aspects of yourself in alignment, but also in alignment with the highest blessing and endeavor to serve, to be with God in service, to be at peace together and open so that all may come together, flourish together in harmony and light.

When you come together in this way it is not a casual thing. There is always work to do, my beloved brothers and sisters. There is always the possibility of what may be accomplished. There is always the Will of God working and bringing through each of you and collectively, an outcome that will bring greater light and greater harmony among you and into the world. Many layers and levels, my beloved friends, much that can be accomplished through your efforts and prayers coming together in harmony and love.

As you begin this circle that will grow and grow, implement your awareness and your efforts towards light, harmony and love. You will be rewarded and others will be rewarded. For many do not understand these concepts, they are not mature enough to perceive and know these things. It is for you to know and perceive, my beloved brothers and sisters. It is for you to be a part of this great circle that has in it many moving parts, many dynamics, many aspects, many layers. We may utilise you to smooth out the rough patches, so to speak, to calm the waters, to bring greater harmony and peace, to help open the many who will be amongst you and to truly be in alignment with God's Will.

Much work to do and much responsibility to carry, but indeed you are each up to the task. You each have special gifts. You give something unique to this circle and to one another, strengthening and bringing forth powerful blessings through your instrumentality, through the instrumentality of the angels and the Touch of God upon all of this.

May God bless you, beloved souls, keep you in light, keep you in harmony, keep you guided and intended towards the highest blessings and outcomes. God bless you. I am Seretta Kem and I love you, each, beautiful souls filled with so much potential. So many unique gifts that are given in love, that God has created these unique flowers, so beautiful, ready to burst forth in love, light and beauty. God bless you, beloved souls. God bless you all. My love is with you.

#### 2023-10-10-AF-Seretta Kem

#### Blessing of Deep Healing as We Travel to Laurelville

Spirit:	Mylora
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

I come to give you healing, each one of you, to uplift you, that you are in the best possible condition and light for this time together. For we rely upon your instrumentalities, your gifts and abilities to help uplift the larger group. We have brought you together at an earlier time so that you may be prepared. We have been working diligently to help you to be in the best possible condition. You have slept well and you will be well, my beloved and beautiful friends.

As you greet all those who come, you will give to them an upliftment, a blessing as well. We charge you up, so to speak. As you think of your devices in this way, so you are our devices. We utilise you to store the energies and blessings for others, giving to them as you greet them with love and embrace them with love. So I urge you to be open and willing to give, to embrace, to love.

You are blessed, my beloved friends. Indeed, you sparkle with your charges and the beauty of your souls. How lovely to see you in this condition and in this way. This will grow as well. Much is being given. Remember this. Be open, be open and joyful. I am Mylora. God bless you. God bless you, my friends. We are working together for the good of all. I love you.

2023-10-11-AF-Mylora

# Your World is About to Change

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the gift of the Father's Love continue to awaken you, beloved souls. I come. I am Jesus. I come to you in your prayers and efforts to bring greater light to this world of yours, to all who seek greater light and truth. I am with you in these efforts always. My beloveds, my disciples, I am with you.

The pace and tempo of your work is about to change. You will find great demands upon each of you. You will feel compelled and open to the possibilities of the work that lays ahead. You will find great fulfillment as you step forward in this work. For when you do God's work, then you are blessed and you are blessed mightily, beloved souls. I ask you to continue to open yourselves to your guidance, God's Will that will continue to infuse your consciousness and guide you forward upon the path Divine.

When you ask to be God's instruments, then you cannot put limitations on what that is. Instead, you must come to acknowledge the Will of God, the guidance given and all its details, all its possibilities

unfolding in your life. I come to assure you, that all that is meant to be in God's plan shall unfold accordingly. It is for you to comply and to be in harmony with this plan.

For each of you were born with a purpose and a destiny. Each of you will come to realise this purpose and destiny. Nothing shall hold you from it, beloved souls. You will be protected. You will be in the light always and the joy of service will be great. The joy of love flowing powerfully and beautifully through you to many souls will sustain you and help you to overcome any inhibitions, any doubts, any fears. You will find yourself upon a road so clearly laid before you. Ahead you will travel and walk as God's instruments. You will understand why you walk upon this road. You will know the guidance and the details. You will come to understand with wisdom of the soul, how you may proceed and what the purpose of your efforts will be. Many angels will surround you and uphold you.

The world is in great need of each of you. Each of you have a great gift to give, a great light to shine upon this world of yours. I only pray that you see and understand that which I speak. That you will come to truly know that there is purpose, that there is a journey ahead, so vital, so blessed, so needed. That you will not shirk from it, but boldly step forward in the great gift and light of God's blessings and will upon you, beloveds.

There is so much yet to do, so many journeys to take, so many souls to reach out to. The world is crying out for guidance and blessings, for the Love of God to bring the soothing blessing upon the soul. His great Love changing the very nature of each soul, so that it may truly be fulfilled in what is intended and what God wishes for each of His children.

May His blessings continue to unfold you in your lives. Know that I am with you, that my hand is upon you as your brother. That my love for you is great and I truly see your destinies which gives my heart great joy. May you see as I see, the purpose that God has laid before you and what is truly unfolding in your life. His Love shall continue to sustain you, change you and awaken you. This is His plan for each of you and so it shall be, beloveds, so it shall be. In all its glory and beauty, the power of God's Hand upon you shall change the world, shall be the precursor to a new world.

May God bless you. I am your brother and friend, Jesus. I shall walk with you always. You may call upon me in need, desiring to be in great alignment with God, light and all that is of truth, all that is of His Love. Know that I, too, am with you in these moments as you reach out to your Heavenly Father. I, too, pray with you. I, too, see what you see and more and shall share with you my insights and understanding of the journey that must be taken and shall be taken in love, harmony and peace. God bless you, my beloveds. God bless you in His great Love. Open yourselves to this touch from the Holy Spirit, that shall be your destiny, forevermore. My love is with you. I am Jesus and I am with you. God bless you.

2023-10-11-AF-Jesus

#### The Route You are About to Take Will Encompass the World

Spirit:	John the Beloved
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 15, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

....I merely wish to confirm and add to this message from our beloved brother, Master of the Celestial Kingdom. That he indeed showed his light to you, beloveds and affirmed your destinies upon the path Divine. You shall know, truly know from your heart, your soul and your mind, all that is meant for you, all that shall be given. The door shall open wide and you will have the strength, the capacity, to walk through these doors, joyfully so with wisdom and strength. You will serve as God's instruments in a world so in need of light, truth and peace.

Go in love, beloved souls. Walk with the surety of a soul that has been graced by the Love of God. The Essence of His Soul resides within you. In this is a great strength, wisdom, insight and capacity to serve your Heavenly Father in many ways, through many avenues, gifts and abilities. The light shall pour through you and touch many souls upon the journey that you are about to take, that will open wider and wider until it encompasses the entire world and the dark places of spirit. You are truly blessed and shall be blessed deeply, profoundly so. God bless you. I am John and I love you.

2023-10-11-AF-John the Beloved

# Affirms the Portal is Open

Spirit:	Keea-Atta-Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

I am Keea- Atta-kem and I wish to acknowledge you as well in this Holy time, as you commune with God. I am here with you as are many, many angels who come on the portal, what God has opened for the benefit of all.

# This Gathering Will Change Your Perspectives and Motivations to Carry You Forward

Spirit:	Matthew
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Much has come, my beloveds, for each of you. This time of gathering will change many, will change your perspective, your motivations, your ideas. All that carries you forward will now reflect the great blessing that is to come for each of you. I am Matthew. My love for each of you is great.

# You Will Fly on the Breath of God to Awaken Many Souls

Spirit:	Confucius
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Oh, little birds, how your plumage grows, strengthens and colours. Touched by the Divine, so that you may soar into the Heavens and touch God more closely. You may sing your songs of truth to your brothers and sisters with such clarity and beauty that they cannot help but listen and feel moved by your song. How beautiful God has made you, your souls fluttering in the light of God's Touch, awakening and changing as His Love flows.

For each of you, there is a deep blessing, a deep purpose, a great journey ahead. So you may fly, my beloveds. Fly on the Breath of God so that He may awaken many souls to the truth of His Love, in all its glory, in the depth of His blessing and Touch upon them. So you are the harbingers. You take flight as God guides you so.

God bless you, beloved souls. Children of truth, desiring to serve, to bring peace to the world, light and love. How the world needs you and many more like you, beloveds. So you will find the souls who are seeking to serve. You will find and make contact with many who are eager to fly with you to the Heavens. To the Heavens, beloveds, we will go. God bless you.

2023-10-11-AF-Keea-Atta-Kem-Matthew-Confucius

#### Your Desires and Expectations for a Special Blessing

Spirit:	Michael Collier
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 11, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Friends, I am Michael Collier. Our dear instrument was somewhat mistaken thinking that I am this dear son's guide. Merely that I was close to you while you were having your libations. His guide is certainly Matthew and will continue to be. But it is an honest mistake for he perceived my presence, so therefore put in his mind a connection between this dear son and myself. I wish to say that I've been with all of you at some time or another, as are many angels who do this circuit, so to speak, between each who are yearning and working toward greater light and development of their soul. We work together, a great team of angels, who come together to help uplift those of humanity who are desiring for the light, for the truth, for love. So we put our efforts forth.

There is expectation among you for something unique and special to happen while you are together, not only in this small circle, but in the larger circle to come. I say to you, this is a good perspective and attitude. Because when you have high expectations, when you have a desire within your soul for a high blessing from God, then you open up the possibilities for this to be so. A circuit is created between your desires, God's answering of your desires, thus circulating back and forth, back and forth, between yourself and God. It opens the way. Desire and expectation, these are positive elements, expressions of yourself. It is not that you are demanding from God. Rather, it is a sense that something is about to happen. Within you is excitement and this generates an expectation of a blessing.

So I encourage you and those who are coming to continue to feed that expectation, that desire for a high blessing from your Heavenly Father. These dynamics are positive. When one enters into this condition and situation without any expectations, a rather mediocre condition of waiting and seeing what may be, then the possibility of excitement, desire and longing expressed, are lost. I encourage you, I encourage all of you, to desire intensely. If this means you have expectations of a blessing, so be it. Do not feel you are misstepping or that this is some error. Rather, in your desires, intense and focused, you open the door for God to bless you and to bless all around you. Is this not what is needed, my friends?

Now, what may come from these expectations and desires may be different from what your mind puts together to add to these expectations. But I know that you will accept whatever God gives to you. It is not like you have a list and that this list must be fulfilled. Rather, you have a yearning and an expectation that this yearning shall be fulfilled by the blessings of God. Yearning goes out from the soul, connects with God, igniting the laws of response from God. So the blessings are showered down upon you, my beloved friends.

Be of good cheer. Be excited. Have deep desire and expectations for the time to come and the time that is present. For how else is God to reach you but through these feelings and emotions, reaching out to God? You forge the connection. It is like a bridge where you are on one end and God is on the other. Through each side, a bridge forms from your desires and prayers, through God's responses and His desire to respond to you, to give to you, to love you. Love always comes to those who open themselves to this blessing. His Love, the great Divine Love is what is given, the highest blessing of all. With this, many other blessings flow, the light, love, healing, peace, all come with His touch, as you forge the link between your soul and His great Soul, so it comes. A great channel is opened, clear, and powerful, to each of you, and to all of you.

My desire is that in whatever way that you open this channel, do so with the highest of intentions, with the greatest of desire, so that God will touch you deeply and beautifully. That you will be changed by His Touch, by the experience of your gathering together. It will build and mount each day to a crescendo of blessings, a great influx of your angel friends to be with you, connecting Heaven and Earth in a magnificent way, in a way that shall indeed bring great and powerful blessings to your souls, to your conscious self. You will come to know God in a deeper way, and know yourself in a deeper way. That the many questions that you may have may be answered in this way, through your relationship with your Creator, the One who knows all, the One who is the All, the One who loves you so.

God bless you, beloved souls. I am Michael Collier and I love you dearly. You are blessed, blessed to know one another, blessed to experience these things together, blessed because God has brought you together. I love you, and will be with you during your journey together. God bless you.

2023-10-11-AF-Michael Collier

## Angels Are Ready and Waiting

Spirit:	Seretta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 12, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Beloved souls, I am Seretta Kem. The tendrils of love are continuing to wrap around all who are involved in this beautiful circle that is coalescing in love and light. Your thoughts are intermingling with the thoughts of others. Your intentions are clear and united. The power of love is dispelling any reticence and sense of distance between you. Instead comes the excitement and the awareness that you are one body in God's blessings and ministrations upon all of you. This sense will grow as you continue to pray together and be together. Not only you within this small group but within the greater group of dedicated souls seeking to grow, to expand in God's Love, seeking to be transformed, seeking to be guided and blessed. And so it shall be, my friends.

The stage has been set. The efforts and prayers have been made. The angels are at the ready. As you, beloved souls, eagerly seek to serve and to be God's instruments in the beauty and unfoldment of God's plan. How blessed you are. How excited we all are, knowing what is to come, what will unfold. We are eager to see how you respond to what has been orchestrated and awaits the expression of God's Will and plan for you all.

May your day be filled with joy, my beloved friends. All will come together in harmony as you will meet your friends. And they will meet you, embracing in love and joy. Acknowledging that each belongs to the other, a family of love that is growing, and shall continue to expand exponentially in times to come.

You will be utilised as God's servants in many ways. Much travel and connection will be made as God's plan unfolds and you feel yourselves being drawn into this plan. Be an integral part of this plan to work together to help awaken humanity. The beginning of something wonderful is now upon us, the unfolding of something profound and crucial for the world.

You are a part of this, my beloved brothers and sisters, as are we, swept along on the great river of love and God's Will as we listen and we allow ourselves to be within this great flow and journey towards light, towards at-onement with God. God bless you, beloved souls. I am Seretta Kem and we await the unfoldment, the glory and the light that is coming and is upon you. God bless you. My love is with you. God bless you.

2023-10-12-AF-Seretta Kem

# Message and Al's Visions Received During the Retreat

## Welcomes and Opens Laurelville Gathering

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 12, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the peace that passes all understanding be yours, my beloved brothers and sisters, children of the Earth. I come. I am Jesus. I come to open this circle, this time together. That we may be in peace and harmony, that our souls may be open and long for the great inflowing of God's Love. That we may be further awakened in truth. That we may all know the joy and wonderment of our Heavenly Father's Touch upon us. The Holy Spirit touching us, awakening us, bringing us to God.

For too long, the world has waited for its healing and its awakening. For too long, humanity has acquiesced to its own desires and inclinations that are not of God. Now is the time for the awakening of humanity. So, you come together at this time, these moments of prayer, with the hope and the desire that the awakening may take place. That the barriers may fall, that the truth may come alive within each soul upon this world.

Each one of you shall know this quickening, this blessing within. As you are together in unity and desire, as you continue to seek, awakening to the truth of your own soul, so you bring the awakening to the world. Even in this small collection of souls, there is the potential to awaken the world. Each of you is His channels, His instruments of light, truth and love, and you may indeed help to open the door to many who are seeking, who are longing.

It is with the manifestation of love through each one of us that others may know the truth. It is not so much in words and declarations, that which comes from a mind seeking recognition or seeking to force open the doors of truth for humanity. It is in your humble desire to serve God, to be with God in His Love, that His plan may be fulfilled. That His plan may indeed unfold in such ways and wonders that you cannot possibly see or know at this time. Yet, you will see. You will know and you will come awake to all that is in need of knowing and seeing. For within you is the capacity, the ability to know God's Will, to be a part of God's plan for the salvation of humanity. But you must come to God in all earnestness and longing. In this way, God will respond with the wonderment, the magnificence of His Touch upon you.

You pray for the fires of love to touch you, for the Pentecost to be yours. So it must come from each of you, in all your earnest longings, in all your desires together. The power of which will bring these blessings forth and open the door to your own awakening, your own soulful transformation so that you are in alignment, in harmony, with your Heavenly Father who longs for your awakened opening of soul toward Him. May your love for God manifest in such a prayer and desire that the door is opened, the channel is complete and the blessings come. I honour each one of you, beloved souls. Each one who has come from many lands and far distances to seek out together the great blessing of God's Touch, powerful and transformative.

My beloved and beautiful brothers and sisters, you are a part of the awakening that must come to the world. You shall know your part within it. Beloved souls, God has a plan for each of you. A journey you must take, releasing all desires and dedications that involve the material world and to bring yourself to that soulful awareness. That you may be detached from the material desires of humanity and fully engaged in the desires of your soul and the awakening of your soul as God speaks and comes to you to guide, uplift and awaken you all.

My beloved and beautiful friends, we are on a journey together. This time that we spend together, that is now so precious, so wonderful, so joyful, so important. In this time you will see many things. You will come to recognise many things that are of God, that are of the soul. In this, you will find your way to that holy communion with your Heavenly Father. The angels have put in great effort. We stand at the ready, to engulf you in love, to awaken you through the Holy Spirit. That you may know, feel, see and awaken to all that is meant to be for each of you.

God has a treasure trove of love for you just waiting to be given. Are you eager, beloved souls? Do you desire this from all your heart and all your soul, receiving these gifts, the beautiful blessings of God? For this is why we are here, beloveds. This is why you have been drawn together, to have such profound blessings that you will truly be changed forever and come to know these truths as you have never known them, to come to recognise yourself as you have never known yourself, to be that changed individual in the light and blessings of God's Love.

Seek this love and bring the longing forth and know that God is listening, waiting and shall respond in accordance to the depth of your desires, to the true longings of your soul. All else matters not, my beloveds. All else is of little importance. What is important at this time is you and God, all of us in the great light that flows from God, that we may receive and open to its blessing.

God bless you, beloved souls. I am your brother and friend. I am Jesus and I come to welcome you into this sacred place filled with many possibilities, many gifts and blessings. That is given in love, given freely, given abundantly. Seek, seek these gifts.. Seek from the bottom of your hearts to the very essence of your souls, the gift of His Love.

God bless you. I love you. I love each and everyone of you and I know you. I know your souls. I know your longings. I know your desires and I am with you in these blessings. God bless you, beloveds. God bless you.

2023-10-12-AF-Jesus

#### There is an Angel Assigned to Each One of Us

Spirit:	Seretta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 12, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

There is an angel, an angel that will be with you for the duration of this time together. If you wish to be close to that angel that God has given you, be high in your thoughts, in your intentions, in all that

you do in this time together. Be truly in alignment with God and all will come to pass as has been promised.

Beloved souls, you stand on the precipice of great change. So, you must take that leap of faith and be with God. Release all conditions, all parts of yourself that are not in harmony with God. All thoughts must be pure. All intentions loving and for the highest. All desires deep and welling up from within, seeking your connection with your Creator. In this way the fulfillment of God's plan for you, the fulfillment of your soul's desire for yourself will come and be realised.

May God bless you, beloved souls. I am Seretta Kem. And I come to encourage you upon this journey, a journey we take together and shall take us to many places provided you are willing and you desire deeply to be a part of this. Experience what must come and unfold in God's plan for each of you. God bless you, beloved souls. Seretta Kem loves you. We are all with you. We are all close. Seek the love. Pray earnestly. So, we rise up into the light together. God bless you.

2023-10-12-AF-Seretta Kem-2

## Al's Vision During the Opening Prayer

Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 12, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Visually it was as if we were walking in a cave. As we walked, the dome of the cave lit up, and eventually it became a sort of a funnel where light was coming through. We were all there under that light. There were three lights, so, the beam that came down split into three. The middle light indicated the blessings that God has given us now together, the work and the efforts that the angels have made to bring us together in this light. And it was beautiful. It was powerful.

But in that there's a choice, two different directions. One might fulfill all the promises that our angel friends have been giving us regarding this time together. And there are lots of expectations and thoughts of how we all may expand in the Divine Love and be changed by it together. And that is a real possibility, it's there, waiting for us. But it requires extreme dedication, extreme focus in prayer. It's not that we can wait and receive. We have to be an active agent for these blessings to come. And of course, as we all know, it comes from our soul's desire and prayerful efforts. So this indicates one light

and one possibility, which is the one I would like to go towards because it is the best and highest outcome.

The other light indicated an outcome which would satisfy our needs for a blessing. We would go away from this group feeling somewhat fulfilled, uplifted, given to and nurtured as we always have been in our retreats. But the transformation, as has been promised, did not take place. And that's if we sit and expect and are not fully engaged in the process. We each carry a responsibility to bring the highest, the greatest, the most wonderful blessing to each one of us. So we do it for one another. We do it with the longings of our souls. It's not up here (in the mind). It's not how many prayers we've made and how eloquent they may be. It's how deep is that longing? How great is that desire to bring the gift of God's Love so intensely into this room that we will all be changed, irrevocably and profoundly.

We are given a great opportunity here. God has set the stage beautifully. He's brought us all together as you all know. Despite any problems, we've all come together in harmony. We have this beautiful space. We have one another. We're all friends. We're all brothers and sisters. We're all a part of this. So, I urge you all to make the best of what is given, what the possibilities and opportunities are that God is giving us now. Because the world needs this. The world needs us to be that flame to ignite the change. God is working with each one of us to do that. God is giving each one of us an angel to be with us for this whole time. Whether we're awake or asleep, every moment we have an angel with us. And that is a great gift. It is up to us what we do with what God has given us at this time.

I know we all feel the expectation. We all feel in ourselves that something important is happening here. And indeed it is. But we must add that crucial ingredient with our buy in, so to speak. It isn't going to happen the way you think, or the way you desire. It's not that God wants to not give us these blessings. But God can only give those who are pure of heart and strong of desire. That way the channel is open, that way the blessings flow. When each one is ignited then we help to ignite each other. And so the momentum will build, and so the energy will grow, and so the light will be intense. We will know something so profound, so wonderful, that it will be unlike anything we've experienced before. That was the promise.

We're in a cave which reoresents the human condition. But the light is pouring down on all of us. How much do we want to absorb and how much do we want to reflect that light, that blessing that is given ? It doesn't come from up here (mind), it comes from in here (soul). That's where the key is. That's where it all begins. That's where we need to go, each one of us. We need to encourage each one, all our brothers and sisters to go there in light and joyous acknowledgement. Truly, we are loved by God. That love, as we all know, is the most profound and powerful blessing that we can receive. It will

change each one of us, and make us into magnificent human beings, souls in alignment with our Heavenly Father. I hope we can all feel the power of light and know it and be it together. Thank you.

#### 2023-10-12-AF

#### Postscript: Oct.27 2023

I was certainly right in my understanding that we would all experience this retreat in our own way. I believe that some participants were deeply blessed and changed by their experience there while others felt blessed but not in the profound way that we all anticipated. It is difficult for most of us to truly know the workings and experiences of our soul. It was hoped that we would all be carried away in a 'pentecostal' type experience that reflected a profound sign from God that we were to enter into the next phase of our soul's development. This did not happen in a conscious and materially verifiable way but I believe that for many of us we experienced something profound and powerful. Since we all grapple with the dominance of our material minds, the manifestation of a truly spiritual experience was not consciously achieved although I believe that the potential was there to be blessed in this way.

What I saw during our Sunday afternoon prayer confirmed for me that a tremendous blessing was given to all of us. I saw Jesus elevated in the middle of the circle, hands outstretched and giving a powerful prayer not only for us but for the material and spiritual worlds as well. Surrounding him on all sides were spirits and Angels in great numbers and diversity. Some were brought in their sleep state to be present, many were there from the lower levels of the earth planes as well as many, many bright spirits. All present were all able to see and witness Jesus in all his glory. He spoke of the power of God's Love and his countenance demonstrated that power. After he spoke briefly, he let the fullness of the light in his soul shower over all of us . It was a powerful blessing that benefitted many dark spirits who attended. When I talked to my fellow participants about this, many remarked on how the room lit up. Jesus did address us through the medium and talked as well about the glories of God's Love.

It was a humbling experience and one that I will never forget. It reminded me of some passages in the Padgett books where Jesus appeared in all his glory to many spirits and Angels when declaring the truth to James. My only hope was that everyone could have witnessed this event as I did. A few certainly sensed it and saw something to affirm it but I seemed to be the only one who got the whole picture. I know that this will change in the future as we all open up to the reality of soul perception.

For now, many of you will have to take my word for it and hopefully be comforted by the fact that someone witnessed this event.

We all act on faith and trust that God has His plans for us. I know that our souls benefited greatly by our mutual prayers in Laurelville. How conscious we become in understanding it is, as always, determined by our ability to be consciously aware of our souls. Our Angel friends continue to stress the importance of allowing ourselves to embrace soul consciousness. Progress can be slow and painstakingly so, but the tipping point will come soon enough. I urge each of us to stay the course and allow the signals and signs from our souls to direct us forward. There is no other way forward than this. With much love and appreciation to all those dedicated to the Divine Love Path......Al Fike Oct. 27 2023

# The Power of Your Will

Spirit:	Josephus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the graciousness of God's Love be yours, yours forever, yours that is a journey that awakens, builds and grows with each prayer. I am Josephus, and I come to speak about your will, the power of your will. For you speak of God's Will and the power of His Will to be manifest in the world.

Indeed, the greatest power that you possess is your own will, that part of you that decides, that is engaged in life. And how you are engaged in life is determined by your will. Your will is influenced by your desires, what you wish in your life. Here you come together in this great Circle of Light to assert your will to God, to put your prayers forward to your Heavenly Father, seeking to merge your will with His Will, seeking to be in alignment with God's Will. So you carry the decision within you. You have the choice. You are the one that will determine your future, what may come to you in your life.

Many wish to release their will to another, to have someone else carry that burden. Yet,I say to you, this is error. For I encourage you to hold your will close to your heart, to recognise the power that God has given you to choose, to acknowledge that you are responsible for your choices, for what comes to you in your life. Though there are conditions and situations that you may not have control over, yet, with your attitudes, perceptions and capacity of soul wisdom and love, you are able to overcome all

and every condition in the world. For your will is that strong, beloved souls. It is a great blessing that God has given to each of you.

Do not usurp your will and allow another to carry it for you. Be empowered by the wisdom of your soul, the desires of your heart to be in harmony with God, to be within the flow of God's Will and God's Love. In this way, the marriage between you and God, you will create something even more powerful than your own individual will.

Seek to be at-one with God. Allow God to work through you. Allow your will to acquiesce to the Will of God and in this way, you have reached for the highest. My beloved and beautiful friends, you have come to recognise what is possible in the world with the reality of God as you will know a joy, a fulfillment, an awakening like none other.

So, my friends, we come together here, joining our wills together. Seeking to be with God, seeking to know our Heavenly Father, seeking to know His Will and His desire in our lives. Upon the journey that we take, if we are enmeshed with God in peace, joy, knowledge, guidance, wisdom, truth and love then what more can one want in life? What more can one truly have in a life but a relationship with one's Creator that will guide, protect and instill within you all truth, all beauty, all joy, all love, the highest blessings for you my beloved friends? May you come to know these things in greater measure with each prayer, with each day that passes in your life and to understand the delicate intermingling of your will and God's to forge the highest outcome of all in your life as God's instruments, as God's harbingers of truth, light and love.

May God bless you beloved souls and keep you within that place of harmony with God. Harmony with your own soul's desires. Harmony within the world. For this is what is needed. It's needed that there be harmony to disperse the darkness, the negativity, the conditions that are so much a part of your world, but are not intended to be a part. Be that instrument. Choose light, always. Choose love, always. Choose truth, always. And in this way, you will forge such a powerful alignment with your Creator that all will be in the flow of great light and great harmony.

God bless you, my beloveds. I am Josephus and my love for you is great. I have great respect for your efforts. I honour each of you who have come to this circle and I love each of you. For you are truly my brothers and sisters and we are family in the truth of God's Love. God bless you, beloveds.

2023-10-13-AF-Josephus

#### Truth Will Grow from Your Soul to Your Mind

Spirit:	Seretta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

When we speak to you, when we teach you, we do not primarily speak to your minds, we speak to your souls. We seek to educate your souls that you may come to understand truth from that deep place where truth will reside forever, where you will understand in such a place that is solid and immovable. That you may act and express yourself from the wisdom that comes from that place. That you may be enlightened by the Love of God that will bring to you truth to your consciousness in such a way that you understand on many levels how truth may be applied to your life. How truth may be your treasure, your gift given by God through His intermediaries, through the Holy Spirit, through His blessings upon you.

Truth will grow within you. Not from your mind to your soul, but from your soul to your mind. This is how truth emerges into your consciousness. Your mind may have an inkling of truth, a structure of truth that has been built from words, from books, from messages that we deliver, from many different sources. The integration, the solidity of truth that grows within you comes from your soul, building and growing in God's Love. In this way, you gain the faculties and abilities to understand truth, to truly know truth, to recognise it.

Discernment will grow as well so that when you hear truth spoken around you and through the experiences of your life, you may acknowledge it as truth. It is a conscious thing that comes to you from that deep place that knows and will continue to grow in its knowing, the understanding of life, of what God has created, of what God is. These things will grow within you. In time you will be strong enough, clear enough within you that you may teach these things to others and teach them how to gain truth, the mechanisms of knowing and growing in truth.

May you truly know what God wishes to give to you, what is flowing towards you always. May you receive with humility and grace the deep Touch from God that will awaken truth within you and bring you to all things of God's creation that is of light and truth, harmony and love. May you be blessed, beloved souls. I am Seretta Kem, and I love you dearly. I love you dearly. God bless you, seekers of truth, seekers of love. May you be blessed with love. God bless you.

2023-10-13-AF-Seretta Kem

#### Open Your Souls Wide to God's Blessing and Love

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Open your souls wide, beloveds, for the power of the Holy Spirit is with us. Take full advantage of the gifts that God is giving at this moment. Be uplifted and blessed in this gift. Say to God, "Open my soul that I may receive and know the blessings of your love." Say this with all earnestness and you will be blessed mightily. God bless you. I am with you. I am Jesus and I, too, pray for this gift. God bless you.

2023-10-13-AF-Jesus

# We Are the Light and Shall Burn Bright

Spirit:	Mary
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

I am Mary. I come in love. I come because I love you so. I come because you are my children upon the Earth, seeking to know love, to express love, to be love in the world. So, I embrace you, my beloveds. Truly, truly, we are one in the Truth of God's Love that grows within you and grows within me.

Yes, we are one in this truth together. We carry the light. We are the light and shall burn bright in the world to carry that lantern far and wide. To carry that lantern to our families, to our loved ones, to our friends. To carry that lantern out into the world, which declares love and says that I love you. Be that instrument, that carrier of love wherever you go. Be in alignment with God's Love. That His Love may flow through you in abundance and touch many.

My beloveds, my beautiful children, know that you are truly loved. Know that you are embraced fully in love and that you shall know the joys of love for all eternity. So you have found, you know and you become that love that is the change agent in the world that can transform, heal and enlighten. You carry this, my beloveds. You are the lights of the world. It is wonderful to see from all different places, many places in the world, coming together such as this. Being a light together to help lighten the world. God bless you, beloveds. I am Mary and I love you, beautiful lights. I love you.

2023-10-13-AF-Mary

#### You Are the Listeners

Spirit:	Matthew
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the blessings of the Father's Love befall each of you, your souls open and eager to receive. I am Matthew. I come to speak to you about what is to come in your world as the transformation is happening now. It is happening within each of you. It is happening in the world. As great flux and change comes, so each of you must adjust. Each of you must walk in faith and be able to accept what is coming as the healing and transformation of your world.

God has asked you to stand forth as His instruments, channels for His Love. God has asked the world to come back to harmony and peace. There are those who listen and those who do not. You are the listeners. You open your ears and your hearts, your minds and your souls to what God has to tell you to, to what is given in love, and what is guided as part of His plan for the salvation of humanity.

There are times when you hear things that are not easy to hear. That there is guidance that is not easy to follow. That there are elements in your life which you know are not compatible with the Laws of Love. There are parts of you still in pain, still harbouring those difficult feelings and thoughts within you. Yet your struggles, what you have come to know as your challenges, are easy compared to many others. For they have not started upon the path of love. They do not see beyond their own needs and conditions. They are lost in the quagmire of the human condition.

Yet God has lifted you up, beloved souls, beyond these conditions. He has afforded you many blessings and many opportunities to walk beyond that which is of the human creation and to step within that which is of God's creation. You do so because you recognise the yearnings in your soul, the curiosity of your mind, the feelings and yearnings for love that are within your heart. This door opens wide for each one of you. There is a great blessing awaiting each one of you, though your brothers and sisters who are lost and in the darkness have no idea of what is awaiting and what is coming.

Yet you in your perceptions, your understandings of soul, have come to see that there is a difficult period coming for your world. It has already begun. Many have suffered from the changing conditions of your world. There is much anger and turmoil. There are wars and thoughts of war. There is hatred. There are all manner of thoughts, conditions and intentions that are not of God. Nor are they of love.

Yet through all of these things what comes of humanity but greater fear, greater ignorance and a lack of love. You are here to countermand these conditions, to be a force for love, to be a channel of light and love in the world. You are afforded every blessing, every way in which God may reach you is given so that you may be strengthened in love, awakened in love, your souls with God in love.

So, we make our efforts. We come to you close so that you may feel us and in so feeling us, know the power of love that God has instilled within all of our souls. That you may feel God's Love with your soul ever more intently, ever more powerfully. We do this not just for you and you alone, my beloved brothers and sisters. We do this for the world as we make this beachhead of light with you, my beloved friends.

You have the strength, courage and desire to step beyond these conditions, to be in the light, to understand the way in which you may come to the light. Thus we are with you. Here to uplift, here to teach, here to guide and inspire. Here to pray with you. Here to walk with you upon your journey of life. This is God's blessing to you. Those of you who have made that choice to go beyond those things that reflect the human condition to see life from a different perspective, to understand the meaning of life from the perspective of the soul.

My beloved friends, it is time to redouble your efforts, your commitment, your prayers to receive an ever greater measure of Divine Love within. To put aside any fears, any thoughts that you know full well are not in harmony with love. To find the freedom, the release from those conditions that have held you in darkness. Now is the time. God gives you great opportunities to walk in light together. To be transformed with love together. To be truly brothers and sisters expressing love, acknowledgment and respect for one another. Be that child of light, my beloved friends. Walk in the glory and

wonderment of God. You will find yourself uplifted and carried in the light. This I promise you, beloved souls. This I promise you.

I am Matthew and I love you. I walk with you as do many, as does our beloved Jesus. All the Celestials are praying for you at this time for these moments of transformation, healing and upliftment in the Love and Truth of God. God bless you. We are here together in the sacredness of the moment. So we shall pray for the blessings that God wishes for each one of us. May they flow abundantly and may you open and receive with great yearning and great understanding of what is given. God bless you, beloveds. God bless you.

2023-10-13-AF-Matthew

# Anything is Possible in Love

Spirit:	Moses
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 13, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

Blessings to you, beloved souls. I am Moses. I lived in trying times, times that led our people into conditions and situations that challenged us greatly. Yet, those who were strong, led. Those who were able to see beyond the trials and tribulations of daily life were able to comfort and lead their brothers and sisters. And you, my beloved friends, though you live in many comforts and conditions that distract you from the true conditions of your world, you too live in trying times. You too are on the precipice of great change.

We come to strengthen you, my beloved friends. We come to encourage you to forge a relationship with God so strong and deep that whatever comes in your life you may not be distracted or downtrodden by these events but strong, willing and able to lead. For you will be needed. You will be needed, greatly.

I beseech you, my brothers and sisters, to look within, to assess the condition that lies within your soul, to assess the attitudes that come within your mind, to see the strength of your body and your capacity to withstand the impediments of the material life. For God will ask much of you. God will

show you the way and that way will not be easy. It will have its challenges, more so than now. Much will come to you that will bring hardship to some degree. Yet, with the glowing embers of God's Love within your soul, with the strength of your faith, with your trueness to God and your commitment to light, you will not suffer as others suffer. For you will be beyond those ruminations of the mind and walk in the glory and freedom of love.

As you have been told, these things depend upon your willingness, your choice, your dedication, your prayers. My beloved friends, are you ready? Are you strong? Are you of good faith? Does love dwell within to such a great degree that despite these hardships you will love all you meet, you will care for those in need and bring comfort to many? This is what God asks of you, my beloved and beautiful children of truth. As you answer His call you will be rewarded with love and blessings, blessings beyond your imaginings, manifestations that will be powerful and will carry you through the darkness that is coming.

Be uplifted. Know that you are being cared for, protected, nurtured and loved. That in this many will benefit, many will be blessed. I come to you not to bring fear or that you may feel judged, but to say to you that with the power of love anything is possible. With the strength of love within you, you may endure the impossible. With the joy in your heart, you may walk your road with deep desire to serve your fellow men. Be of good cheer, my beloved friends. For everything here is given to you in abundance, in light, in joy. Drink deep these Living Waters. Allow the joy to infill you and spread through you that you may all celebrate the gift that God has given, the gift of life, of love, the renewal of your soul in the Grace of God.

God bless you, beloved souls. I am Moses and I come to entreat you with love and my strength and wisdom. God bless you. God bless all of you in this world. I love you. I love you, beautiful souls of light. I love you.

2023-10-13-AF-Moses

# Anticipate the Dawning of a New Way of Living

Spirit: Andrew Medium: Al Fike Date:October 13, 2023Location:Laurelville, PA

May the blessings of the Father's Love continue to flow into your souls. God bless you. I am Andrew. I come to speak of the parting of that veil that keeps you from truly understanding the nature of life, the nature of your own spirit and the nature of your own soul. For many of you continue to walk through life veiled from these realities, not truly knowing how life is. Yet this was never meant to be.

You are all meant to know that this material life is just one minor aspect upon a very, very long journey. That you need not be separated from your angel friends, from the bright spirits and all that is good. Each of you has the capacity to know these things, Though your knowing and your experience of them will be unique. Thus you can and will know that life is continuous. That life is all around you. That God provides the comfort and companionship of your angel friends who may come close and be with you in the light of the journey of your seeking God and His Love.

We wish for you to know these things, experience these things, and to be well involved and engaged in this new way of seeing. One that is not well recognised in your world and yet a reality that exists and must exist for all in your world, so that they may understand more clearly the nature of life and their own true nature.

If their experiences and their perceptions are deepened by this, then how can they go and violate another individual? How can they go to war? How can they express themselves in destructive ways? For when they see all about them the wonderment, the intricacy, the beauty of God's creation and all its manifestations, then what comes to the individual is awesome recognition, complete understanding of why life exists and how it may be honoured with love.

Whether that individual walks that path of the natural man or towards becoming a Divine Angel, the recognition, the understanding is the same. Although with your souls awakened with God's Love, this understanding deepens and the reverence for God and God's creation expands. You become enveloped in a reality and understanding of the world that is far deeper than what is so common today.

The world must open up in many different ways, my beloved friends. There is such a need for the deeper perceptions of the individual to come to the fore. For their feelings, knowings and experiences of the spiritual must be as alive as the material perceptions and experiences. This is what is meant to be in your world. This is what God wishes for every individual. That their capacity to communicate with the world beyond the veil so that it may become a real and living experience in their lives. This is important and must come to pass if the world is to progress beyond its present state of such cold materialism, such ignorance, such inability to truly honour life.

My beloved and beautiful friends, as you open, as you experience life in this way, as you experience God with your soul open to His Love, you become the examples. You are the harbingers for your brothers and sisters to step forward into a new world. A world that includes insights and realities of soul perception, of spiritual understanding.

I urge you to be brave, to walk in faith, to awaken as God touches your soul so deeply and to accept these parts of yourself, these faculties and abilities that will bring you greater insight into the world, into yourself, into one another. These things are important, leaving behind misunderstandings, erroneous beliefs and ideas of what life is.

Rather, you will be blessed with truth, with the reality of how life truly is. This will bring you a depth of knowledge, wisdom, compassion and understanding. All infused with love, so that you may walk in the world as one of God's true instruments, clear and beautiful in its depth and perspective.

You are all very close to this awakening. It is but a few steps away. Can you allow yourself to break through these veils and be freed by the clarity of perception and understanding of the truth? This comes as the love grows within your souls. For surely, when you grow and when your soul awakens then these insights and perceptions are available to you. Anticipate the dawning of a new way of living and experiencing life. This is a true gift from God.

Wouldn't it be wonderful if you could gaze upon a flower and see all the colours of the rainbow emanating from that flower? Or gaze upon a creature of God's creation and know its purpose and feel and recognise how integral they are to the functioning of your world. To gaze upon each other and truly see one another as who they truly are and the beauty of their soul. To be with God and know God in such a deep and intimate way, that the joy that will come, the understanding that will emerge within your conscious self will be so deep and wondrous, that you will be in awe as to what God is, who He is, and the wonderment of His creations.

Much awaits you, my beloved friends. There is so much for you to discover and know. As you continue to grow in God's Love, so these things will emerge. So, you will come to know. In this will come great joy, great intrigue, curiosity and desire to know more, to be more immersed within the Truth of God's creation. This is what awaits you, my beloved friends. This is what will come to you as you continue to have faith in your abilities, capacities, and gifts. All that you are that is hidden within you will come to the fore. You will be embraced by the truth of your own self, who you are and what you are.

My beloved friends, there is so much for you to discover. So much awaits you. Yearn for the blessing of God's Love and these things will become real and tangible within your life. You will see life so very

differently. All that you desire, all that you wish for, all that you apply your will toward will change, reflecting new perceptions and abilities. You will know joy in this. You will know great love for God and for all of God's creations.

My brothers and sisters, we come together to be awakened, to truly know ourselves, even those parts that are difficult to know. Whether it is because we do not wish to see or whether it is because we cannot see, these things shall open as you exercise your faith and desire in prayerful application of truth, to be that beautiful soul that you are meant to be.

My beloved friends, we are here with God. We are here to be with God. Shall we not pray together, and be with God together? I am Andrew and I love you, beloved souls. I love you dearly. God bless you. God bless you, beloved souls.

2023-10-13-AF-Andrew

### Prepare for Changes that are Now Upon Us

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 14, 2023
Location:	Pennsylvania, US

I wonder whether you can feel the changes of your heart, soul and mind? Are you able to see that things will unfold in accordance to God's Laws, that you will be a part of all that is meant to be at this time? I am Jesus and I come to you to speak of times to come, to inform you of changes that will be necessary and powerful in your life.

The world is on the precipice of great change. I know we have said this many times in many different ways. But now it comes. You are within a hair's breath of what may be in your life. Thus, we have gathered you together in this way so that you may have the comfort and the knowings of each other upon this path Divine.

The world changes in many ways. The most obvious at this time will be the melting of the ice, not only upon your North Pole, but the South Pole. Glaciers are already decomposing. So, in this, the sea levels will rise quite exponentially. You will see this in your own life. This will change the nature of your economies and societies. For much is dependent upon having access to water that is consistent and will provide a way and means of bringing goods to many different parts of the world.

Things will change rapidly, my beloved friends. This will not happen within a decade. It will happen within a few years. So, this one great change will have its dominoes effect upon the economies of the world and all that you do together as humanity continues to be a part of trade and commerce. Then there will be a great surge of energy coming from the sun. It will cause your electronics and ways of communicating to be disrupted. This, too, will create difficult times. Yet, commerce and the possibility of the interchange of communication will continue, but not in a way that you might imagine. Nor will it be swift and efficient as it is now.

Humanity is very resourceful. Humanity will figure a way to open the channels of communication and commerce. But what is of now, the power of all these interchanges, will no longer be a part of your living world. And you, my beloved friends, you will be guided. You will find ways and means of communication and not to be part of the deluge that is coming, provided you are willing to listen and acknowledge the guidance that comes. If you ignore such guidance, if you shrug your shoulders in a sense of disbelief, then you will be caught up in the turmoil that is to come.

We gather you together in these Circles of Light in order to prepare you for this time. Indeed, the time comes close. You each will be guided. You will come to know what you must do to be in harmony with God's Will and plan, to be God's instruments in the world. Not in the way that you perceive and project, but in the way that God has planned, and will open the door accordingly. You cannot truly imagine the chaos that is coming. But you can, indeed, come to God where God will bring to you peace and harmony.

This is a great challenge to you, beloved souls. Indeed, a great challenge. For how can you surmount these obstacles, these difficulties? How can you let go of your connection and addictions to the material world in such a way that you are God's instruments primarily, and that you may know how you might survive? What may come to each one of you and your families and loved ones? You come together in this way to seek guidance, to seek peace, to seek the blessings of God. Indeed, these blessings come abundantly.

I say to you, my beloved friends, there is nothing that shall hold you from the Will of God, provided you exercise your faith, that you are within the prayerful communion of God. In this way, you will know the steps you must take. You will understand as things unfold what is coming. You will see for yourselves the great blessings that God has for each of you and for those you love. It will come in ways very much unexpected, in ways that open doors that you cannot possibly imagine at this time. We are urging you to be prayerful, to awaken to the truth of God's Love. For in this way, you will find your way through the tumult. You will be in harmony with God's Will and plan for you. You will find ways and means to survive and to be effective channels and instruments of God's Will. This will not come by mere prayer alone. You must come to God with a desire to be transformed in His Love. In this way, you will know the wonderment of His Touch upon you and you will release all conditions and doubts that hold you from this understanding.

Much is being given to you now, my beloved and beautiful brothers and sisters. Much is flowing toward you. Much will be given as you continue to be together in love, as you continue to open yourselves to the great blessings of God's Love. Though these things that I say are important, they are not nearly as important as developing your soul in God's Love, to be free from the conditions, those aspects of your being that are of the human condition, so that you may truly be in harmony with God. That all that you are will be part of God's intention and plan for you.

There is much coming and you, my beloveds, will come to know the unfolding of the Divine plan in your life. Yet, you must release those conditions that are not in harmony with this. You must be in the flow and light that is God's plan so that when the time comes, you will find it easy to be in harmony with God's Will. His plan will not be difficult to follow. Rather, you will be enwrapped by love and the angels and all that which is good. You will find your way upon a world that is in chaos. Yet, within you is a steadiness, a strength, an understanding, that will guide you forward and bring you to that place where God intends for you to be in a world that is so dangerous, that has so much that is not in harmony with His plan.

My beloved brothers and sisters, we have spent much time with you. For some it is over many years. For others, it just begins. Yet, each of you are capable of knowing God's Will. Each of you are blessed in God's Love. So, in this, all that is required is embedded within your soul. You will come to know it and feel it and see it in the ways that are in harmony with your gifts. Listen to God. Seek out God. Seek to be in harmony with your Creator. In this way, all that is of harmony, all that is of God's plan will unfold in accordance to His desires and intentions for each of you.

None of you are singled out. Rather, all of you are a part of God's plan. So, you must come to know it, to have faith in God and to be within the flow, the mighty flow of His Will so that all may unfold accordingly. That you will survive these terrible conditions and you will do so with a measure of joy, a measure of understanding. In this, you will teach and uphold your brothers and sisters, those whom God will guide toward you. All that is in harmony with God's plan will become evident, will truly be a part of your life and who you are.

My beloved brothers and sisters, know that all continues to unfold in accordance to God's great plan. The coming together in this way is part of God's great plan and that as you come together and discuss what I have said, do not overcomplicate my words. Listen and know, from the depths of your heart, what I say is true. In this way, all that is in the light and love of God will unfold readily and powerfully.

I am your brother and friend, Jesus. I come to you with a serious message, but one that is important, one that you must know. I wish to assure you, when the time comes when you are in need of guidance, it will come through the angels. It will unfold in accordance to God's plan. You are blessed, beloved souls, truly. May His Love continue to pour within you and be a part of your journey to at-onement.

My love is with you all. I am with you all, as are many angels. So, it will be. As I say and reveal to you, it will be. For there is nothing obscure about my message. It is clear as day. I wish for you to read it, to absorb it, to read it again and consider it, because this message is crucial for your continued progress upon the earthly plane. As you continue to seek God's Love, as you continue to be open to His Touch, so the meanings of these messages will expand and you will see clearly and powerfully what you must do as God's instruments in the world.

May God bless you, beloved souls. May you be truly a part of His plan, truly a part of all that is of light and love and truth. God bless you. I am Jesus and I love you. Beloved souls, I love you.

2023-10-14-AF-Jesus

# Implores Us to Unify in Purpose

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 14, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the great blessings of God's Love befall upon your souls, beloved children of God. I come. I am your brother, I am your friend. I am Jesus. I come because you are my brothers and sisters, truly. You carry the truth of God's Love within your hearts and souls. You are truly His children and truly my brethren.

You come together for the benefit and welfare of your own souls. Yes, you may pray for the world, you may pray for your loved ones, you may pray for many. Yet, the focus and the power of your prayers must be for your own soul. For how else can you enter into the world as a light if you are not a light, if you have not considered your growth and awakening that comes with the Father's Love pouring within?

I could not do my work, my ministry without the awakening that came to me in prayer. At times, I would retreat from the world and replenish myself in prayer. Here, God has given you the opportunity to be replenished, to drink of His Living Waters, to drink deep, to be in His Grace. Do not look upon this opportunity with a casual perspective. I urge you to take seriously what is being given. The yearning of your soul must come forth, even if it is painful, even if that part of you that is yearning is also crying out to God in your pain. I say to you, open yourselves fully, powerfully, to the inflowing of God's Love through His Holy Spirit that will touch you deeply. In this way you will find yourself within the holy rapture of God's Touch. You will be awakened by the deep and powerful touch of His Soul to yours.

My beloveds, this is what I have come to teach and I continue to come and teach my brothers and sisters. Whether that be on the Earth or in the spirit world, I continue to come and teach this truth. For it is the highest blessing, the greatest truth of all. It is set before you at your feet, given by God in such mercy, desire and abundance that it is for you to merely reach out to that blessing and receive it fully.

Are you focused, my beloved friends? Are you here together, truly here together in the desire to receive? Are you in love with God? Are you in love with your own soul? All these aspects of yourself crying out in need of nurturance, in need of love? My beloveds, God has great love for each one of you no matter what your life has been in the past. God's desire is that all shall be transformed and changed in the truth of His Love. In this way, you will find redemption, you will find joy, you will be awakened in love. All shall change, my beloveds. All shall change within you and all pain will be replaced with joy and knowing and true understanding of the soul. It is here. It is here, my beloveds.

I beseech you, I beg of you. Ask for this love. Open yourself to this gift and all else shall be given unto you in accordance with the Laws of Love and the blessings of God. It awaits you. Put aside all your worries and cares, all that concerns you on this earthly plane. For now we will be uplifted into the light and bliss of God's Love. Awaken to this, my beloveds. In this you will know the truth. You will know all that we have beseeched you to know in this experience, in this communion with God. The great Love that He gives to each one of you shall be profound and bring to you all that you require to know

the truth, to be in the grace of God's Touch and thus a light, another light shining bright within the world.

It is given, the gift is given. Drink deep, beloveds. Drink deep and know truly within your heart that God loves you so. There is no greater truth. You will know from this truth many things and all will be in harmony with the laws of His Love. We are together in His grace. The light pours upon you, and the light pours into your world. The light touches many, but most of all the light must touch you deeply, profoundly. Release all barriers, all that would hold you back from God. Open yourself, feel the tenderness and vulnerability of your own soul seeking the comfort of its Creator. In this you open the passageway, the flowing of love into you. Seek it now. Open yourself. Be that innocent child of God and be in the light of His Touch.

I am with you, beloveds. With you in your struggles. With you in your trials, with you with each day that you continue to seek the Truth and Love of God. So, I shall be with you always. For my love for you is great. I truly am your brother and shall be for all eternity, beloved souls. May the grace be with you. God bless you. God bless you, my beloveds. Sweet peace upon you, the nectar of God's Love within you, the light burning bright within you. It is a gift to each of you and it shall sustain you. God bless you. I am Jesus and I love you.

2023-10-14-AF-Jesus

# Be in Holy Communion with God

Spirit:	Isaiah
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 15, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

I am Isaiah. I come to uplift you, to bring you to that place far beyond this Earthly plane, that place so true to God that you are in the joy and the bliss of His Presence, the sweet peace that comes as He envelops us all.

My beloved, beloved children of the Earth, you must open yourselves fully to God's presence. For you are in need of His blessings. You are in need of all that God has to give to you. All that is available to

you will be given provided you wish for this blessing. If there is unity, then there is strength and power in the unity. If you have the same desires, then you multiply those desires in prayer a hundredfold. God responds accordingly, for this is the law. This is how God will bless you beloved souls, as you are together in the awakening, the quickening of your soul so that you may truly know how loved you are, how beautiful you are, how beautiful is your life, blessed by God.

You come together, seeking to be awakened by the Love of God, to know His blessings deeply, to be in the flow and grace of His Touch. So it is, in accordance with your desire, all that you are, in this light, in the beautiful Grace of God. The Holy Touch is upon you, beloveds. Feel it. Open to it. For it is here. It is here for each of you. Be in His Grace and know His Love, and all will be well within you and among you.

I am Isaiah. My love for you is great. Children of God, children of God, you are blessed. Indeed, you are blessed. Feel the breath of God envelop you, beloved souls. The awakening, the awakening of your soul, may it come as a mighty rush within you and around you. The light burns bright. The peace, the peace that brings you to the Grace of God. All these things are given, beloved souls, because you have come together to desire this. You have opened your need, yourself to God. Open yourselves beloveds, that place so tender and vulnerable. Open yourselves to God's Touch, the great Comforter, the great blessings that come in prayer.

We are truly His children, it shall be so for all eternity, a journey unlike any other. All that God wishes to give to you is given freely. Open yourselves and awaken to your Heavenly Father. God bless you, beloved souls, God bless you. My love is with you.

2023-10-15-AF-Isaiah

#### Lifts Us Up in Prayer and Praise

Spirit:	Jesus
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 15, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

May the Father's Love uplift you, beloveds. I come, I am Jesus. I come once again to be with you in prayer, to beseech you to God, to help you to be uplifted. I am not alone. There are many angels in your midst. Many bright spirits surround you. A great host of lights are with us at this time. I ask you

to open yourselves to these blessings. God is pouring out His Love upon you. His beautiful Light surrounds us all. In this, you become a beacon of light in the world, a beacon so powerful that it even stretches out into other parts of this universe. Allow yourselves to melt into this light, this love, to open yourselves to the great gift God has to give you, His Holy Spirit touching each one of you. The blessings of our wondrous Creator are here for you to savour, to drink, to receive.

As you are unified in this desire, so you shall be blessed as you are given the opportunity to be in such great light, such beautiful light. Put aside all worries and cares, physical barriers, mindful barriers and be in the light, my beloveds. Share with me in the light. For we are in the light. The Grace of God is upon us. We are truly His children, truly with Him. Do not falter, but rise up, my beloveds. Rise up beyond the earthly plane into this glorious light, this holy place where God beckons us to be a part of this grace.

You are loved, you are loved, you are loved. You will become love, express love. You shall be the lights. You are the lights. Join us in this communion with God and you will know the bliss of His Touch. You will know the freedom that comes with His holy blessing upon you. My beloveds, there is much to be given so I beseech you to open wide to His great gifts. Feel the upliftment. Seek the flames of His Love. They swirl all around you. It is meant for each of you to receive in all its glory and all its power and wonderment. It is given, it is given, my beloveds.

My beloveds, you are my brothers and sisters in the truth, in the glory of God's Love. We are here together to acknowledge this truth and to receive more of His Love. I beseech you to open yourself to all that God has to give to you, the glory of His Touch, the wonderment of His Breath upon you, the upliftment of His Light surrounding you. All is given, all is given my beloveds. For God loves each one of you deeply and wishes for you to know this love from the very depths of your soul to your heart, to your mind, all that you are. May you feel and recognise the Touch of God, His Love, within you. The bell is tolling upon you. You are given great dispensation at this moment. Allow yourself to drift into the river of His Love and swim in these waters that will bring new life, will bring the grace and transform you so.

God bless you, beloveds. I am your brother and friend. I am Jesus and I love you. I pray with you now. Each one, each one a part of the whole, a part of the light. God bless you and uplift you now in the glory of God's Presence.

# Expresses Gratitude for All that was Accomplished

Spirit:	Seretta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 15, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

My friends, I am Seretta Kem. I wish to tell you about the work that you have accomplished together. You have opened many portals of light into this world through your prayers. You have opened yourself to God in a large and expansive way so that you have become a light, a greater light, a light that is needed in your world. We have worked a great deal to open gifts and capacities of perception, so that in times to come you will be used as instruments that are well prepared, that are of light and who have crossed the threshold.

The time comes when you will know what has changed within you. You will see the value and the blessings that have been given to each of you. I know it is difficult for mortals to see beyond the veil of the flesh, to see from our side of life all the intricate details, movements and blessings that have been accomplished amongst you. I come to assure you that much has been given and much has been accomplished. Not only here upon the Earthly plane, but in planes close to the Earth, as much work has been done to help open the light and the blessings to many who are in need and who inhabit the darker planes. Blessings have gone out into the world. Light has gone out into the world. But most importantly, together we have begun something that is of great service to humanity and to God.

Each of you have made your efforts to come together here in eager anticipation. Some of you have had the blessing of deep insight as to what has unfolded amongst you. Some of you have felt deeply things, things of the soul, things of God. Yet, some of you have not felt as much as you would like, or you anticipated. I say to you, my beloved brothers and sisters, we have brought great light to the Earth, and to the dark spheres of spirit. Thus we are very pleased, very pleased indeed, as to what has been accomplished, and we give you our gratitude. We salute each one of you in your efforts, in your dedications, in your willingness to come together in this way.

There will be changes within each one of you, beloved souls. Changes of heart, changes of perception, changes that open the doors to deeper compassion and love in your being. It will take some time to integrate all of the blessings that have been given, but it will indeed manifest in many ways through you in your lives. You will see that the work that you have done together has brought about many rewards and blessings to you. For when you do God's work, when you walk the path of service and love, then

you are rewarded as greatly as anyone else. You are given great blessings and great opportunities for blessings.

Yes, this is the beginning of change, of a shift within you that will bring about great change. This change is necessary. For as the world changes, so you must change and be in harmony with what God has intended, His great plan for the salvation of humanity. And thus He has enlisted each of you, each of you, with your multitude of gifts, capacities to love, beautiful lights, souls shining bright in the Love of God, to move forward, to step beyond the human condition and all that this entails, into the light and glory of God's universe and God's reality.

As you return home, I wish to encourage you to consider what has happened together in this Circle of Light. How the blessings, messages, the gifts may change you and bring about a higher capacity to love, to be in alignment with God, to be a channel of love for God. For you are given the opportunity to sustain this light that has been given to you. You may choose not to sustain it, to nurture it. The embers are glowing within you, and they need your attention, your focus, so that you may truly be a brighter light, a beautiful light in the world.

So you have made dedications here together, you have made great effort to come together. Now we ask you to make great effort as you disperse so that you may become that light that God has blessed and encouraged within you. Do not allow the light to be covered. Allow it to shine. Allow yourselves the freedom, the joy of Love Divine glowing within you and all that comes with this gift. For you have been greatly blessed, beloved souls. You will know this, I promise you, you will know how greatly blessed you have been, and how God's blessings continue to flow upon you, within you.

Your life will change in accordance to the gift and blessings of God upon you, my beloved and beautiful brothers and sisters. Allow yourself to release all that which holds you back from a life of service, a life dedicated to God, a life dedicated to your brothers and sisters, a life that is filled with light and all that is of love. For this is the answer. This is what will change your world. This is the healing that will come when each soul walks upon the Earth with the intention to be in alignment with God, to be a true channel of love, to be a light that glows within their soul, to allow this light to expand and be expressed in your world.

So, we have made great effort together to help expand the light within you, around you and within the world. May this light grow and expand. May there be a powerful impact upon your world that will change humanity, change their attitudes, change their perspective. You must be that agent of change, my beloved brothers and sisters. You must be the light. Do not allow it to diminish, but nurture the

flames that they may grow, that you may prosper in light and truly be God's instruments upon the world.

God bless you. I am Seretta Kem. I thank you for your efforts. I thank you for your light. I thank you for all that you do that is of light. You are precious souls and you have been blessed, greatly blessed in this life. My love is with you. Indeed, all the angels in Heaven, all the bright spirits, all your friends of light have great gratitude for your efforts upon the Earthly plane. God bless you, beloved souls. God bless you.

2023-10-15-AF-Seretta Kem

# Encourages Us to Create More Circles of Light in the World

Spirit:	Matthew
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 16, 2023
Location:	Pennsylvania, US

Beloved souls, I am Matthew. Circles of Light. This is what is needed in your world, circles such as this. Where brothers and sisters may come together and pray, be accepted, be embraced though they may have different cultures, different backgrounds, different ideas. Provided each one seeks the Love of God, then are they not welcomed in a Circle of Light? They are, indeed, by we in the spirit world, by the Celestial Angels, by God.

When these Circles are created, I would suggest that you accept all who may want to come, who desire to pray with you. If they are not cognisant of the truth of God's Love, you may teach them. When they come to a Circle such as this, it is our hope that they will feel and experience the touch of the Holy Spirit upon their souls. Circles of Light will bring greater light to your world. The more there are circles of light dispersed around your world, the greater will be the influence, the power, the blessings, the light that will come to your world.

You are all blessed souls who carry the seeds of truth within you. These seeds must be disbursed. The truth must be disseminated. The awakening must come to your world, for your world continues to suffer. Like all of you, we do not wish to see the suffering continue. God does not wish to see the

suffering continue. God wishes for harmony for all. He created the universe so that it may seek harmony. He created you so that you may seek harmony with God, with your souls in alignment with God's Soul.

Though many do not understand this message, as you grow in light and love, you will be an example, a shining light, a beacon in the world. Do not hide your light, beloved souls, but carry it aloft that it may shine bright. Those you meet upon your travels, upon your journey toward light, give love, be love, accentuate love, and they will be drawn to the light. Indeed, there will come a time where they will ask you, "How is it that you are such a joyous soul? How is it that you are such a light?" You may answer them with truth and, possibly, you may invite them to a Circle of Light. God will provide the opportunities, the ways and the means to reach out to people, to your brothers and sisters. That you may proffer the invitation to them, giving them the opportunity to experience what you have experienced. Show them the way that will bring them to at-onement with God.

This is all we ask of you, my beloveds. This is all we ask. To share the truth as simply and beautifully and gracefully as you can. Do not let your brothers and sisters go hungry when, indeed, they are starving for love. So many feel unloved. So many do not understand what love truly is. So many do not know God and feel estranged from their Creator. This is not what is meant to be. This is not the world that God created. God created a world that progresses toward harmony. God created humanity to progress toward Him, to find their at-onement with Him.

So you have embarked upon this road. Yes, there have been challenges. There have been times where you have felt estranged from many because of your understanding of the truth, your understanding of your own soul. But still you persist. You will continue to persist. In place of this great change of attitude and perspective in life that has caused some to withdraw from you, the angels come close. Your guides come close. God comes close. The friendship that you have gained from your angel friends are more dear than any friends you could have on Earth. They are true. They are with you always and they love you beyond anything you could measure. Their love is so great.

Indeed, as you come closer to God, you will find the great Comforter, the One who embraces you with Love Divine. In this, you will know great comfort, great insight. You will experience many things. You will come to know many things. For God provides all to His children. God will ensure that you are not alone even though you may feel alone in the material world, as some of you do, you are not alone and never shall be.

I encourage you to open your eyes to the world that is all around you, the love that is here, your friends, your bright spirits and angels that are here. All that is good and wonderful, wholesome and beautiful surrounds you, beloved souls. How could one be alone? How could one be lonely? You are His children and God provides for His children. Seek out the nourishment that God gives to you each and every day. Seek out the guidance that God willingly gives to you each and every day. Seek out the fulfilment that is given and practice this truth with every breath. Seek out His Love and know the fulfilment of the soul. That which will bring you boundless joy, boundless joy.

In this way, all the troubles of this world will fall away. You will be in the light, the light of God's grace. In this, many will be drawn to you. You will not be lonely, my friends. You will have many friends, many who look to you for comfort and truth, many who see you as a dear and beautiful soul. It is for you to stand tall in the light, to acknowledge your beautiful souls. Acknowledge your relationship to your Creator. In this way, all else will fall into place readily and harmoniously.

There is no need for suffering, beloved souls. It is of a human creation. God did not create suffering. God created the path to joy, to fulfillment, to all that you have been made to realise, to express. In this greater truth, know that you are loved. I know we say this time and time again, but we see that often you do not believe this. You do not take this in truly. You do not love yourselves truly, but you are taking steps in this direction.

So, we encourage you forward, beloved souls. We encourage you to be in the light, to know the love, to feel the love within you, and to know that you are loved. That you may love yourself wholeheartedly. In this comes fulfilment, fulfilment of the soul's need and desire for love. Be joyful. For as you express joy, you increase the light around you and you affect those around you with light. Beloved souls, be wise. For as you walk in wisdom, you avoid many of the pitfalls of earthly life. Be prayerful. As you continue to commune with your Heavenly Father, then you are living the truth of God's Love.

It is time to open your eyes, beloveds, to the truth, fully. To the love, fully. To the truth of God, fully. To the truth of God's creation so that you may cast away the doubt, the fears, conditions that cause you to suffer, that cause you anguish and pain. Even when you are confronted with those around you who are in their pain, rather than join them and commiserate, you must be the light, the wisdom, the truth and show them the way.

My beautiful brothers and sisters, you have made great progress in this gathering. You have committed yourself more deeply to the journey, to service, to God's Love, the truth of love. We commend you and we honour you. Yet, indeed, the journey, the struggle continues for each one of you in some way. So, we will be by your side. This we promise always. Do not doubt this. When you feel distressed, when life causes you great problems, know that God is there for you. Know that we are there for you and shall always be.

You must put aside the distress that originates from your minds. Go to your soul and pray and seek, even crying out for God. That momentary prayer will have its results and its blessings. Consider what has been said to you during this time, the teachings that have been given. Consider the blessings that have been given. Consider how you may implement what has been given and taught, to bring it into your life. You have been mightily blessed, beloved souls, mightily blessed.

We continue to honour you, to be with you, to work with you, to inspire you, to help you to be uplifted. To help you to grow in your souls so that you may truly be that light of which I speak, and be a bright and shining beacon in the world. This is all possible, beloved souls. You come to it. You come to the threshold. Now we urge you to walk through and see what life is like on the other side. Pulling away from those threads of error and darkness and living fully in the freedom and glory of the truth, of the light, of the love. It awaits you. We are here to help usher you through that threshold and bring you to that place so glorious. That place that you want so dearly within your soul. You will realise this and when you do, you will wonder, "Why did I hesitate? What took me so long to come to this place, this glorious place of freedom?" It is there for the taking, beloveds, always waiting, always there.

May you be blessed by the graciousness of God and His Love, knowing all the benefits and blessings therein. All the freedom of the heart and the soul awakened and glorified in the Light of God. We are with you always. We love you and shall be with you forever, beloved souls. Forever we shall take this journey together, and it will have greater and greater glories beyond measure. It will be an awakening upon awakening upon awakening. The flower continues to open one petal at a time. The glory of God's creation revealed in all its beauty.

May you be blessed, beloveds. Blessed in the glory and truth of God. I am your friend, Matthew. I love you dearly. God bless you. God bless you, my friends.

2023-10-16-AF-Matthew

# Al's Vision From Final Day

Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 16, 2023
Location:	Laurelville, PA

There were, I don't know what I would call them, maidens. They were Celestial women in veils. They came into the center of the circle and made a circle facing us with their backs to the middle. They each had a bouquet of flowers. They gave each one of us a bouquet of beautiful, beautiful flowers. Not from this world. Let me tell you. These flowers were quite extraordinary. It was a gift of thanks for what we've done and to appreciate everybody. Everybody who came here to do this work because it was important work. It is important work.

Even though you may have felt you haven't been fulfilled with some extraordinary experience or something that you know you would have liked to happen in this group, you actually dedicated yourself to something more extraordinary than just a personal experience. It is this collective experience of service that is going to have reverberations and a powerful wave of light that is going out into the world. So, we were honoured in that way.

I saw that my own bouquet had a kind of magenta gladiolus with light centers and of huge purple irises all around that and beautiful peach coloured roses in the middle and then incredibly fragrant carnation type flowers with that. As a gardener I appreciate all these things.

Bill got a big spray of red roses with a large, almost looked like a peony, but it's not like a peony I've ever seen that went with it. Um, now I'm losing it. Anyway, we all got something and it was all beautiful. It was all kind of tailored to each one of us. I know it meant something in terms of the flowers and the colours and all of that put together. They each had meaning.

I remember Wendy got freesias, beautiful freesias. But that's all I remember, I'm sorry. It was a lovely appreciation and you know the intricacy of this kind of send off, I've never seen in a group. They've come and given us blessings and thank you's and all of that and messages but what they did today was really amazing. So, I'm glad we could stay for it.

#### 2023-10-17-AF

# Post Retreat Messages – Guidance for Preparation

# You are the Forerunners of the New World- Laurelville Epilogue

Spirit:	Matthew
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 17, 2023
Location:	Sechelt, B.C.

I am Matthew. Yes, you will each need some time to integrate and adjust to this new expression of your soul that has been accomplished through this time together. I know it is difficult for you to understand the workings of your soul and the intricacies and feelings of your soul in such a way that it becomes obvious that there has been a change. Yet indeed, there has been a change, a deep change within each of you. This change will be expressed in many ways. Uniquely, of course, because you are unique. You will come to see gifts emerging, new longings, new ideas, new expressions of yourself coming forth in your life.

Thus, your priorities will change, your desires will change because your soul has changed. Deep blessings have been given to each of you who have attended and those who have come to be a part of this through your own prayers synchronising with the prayers of those assembled in your gathering. Each soul who truly seeks to grow and awaken in God's Love will know the changes that will have been wrought within their souls. The beautiful openings, the emergence of greater light, the beauty of those parts of you that have not been acknowledged or known, will now begin to emerge and be known. In this way, I urge you not to reject these things, but to embrace them.

For you are the forerunners of the new world, my beloved and beautiful friends. If you are to be the forerunners, then you must expect that your attitudes, expressions and important aspects of your life will change accordingly. There is nothing to inhibit this other than your own fear of expressing it and there is a great deal that upholds it. For not only have there been internal changes, but external changes as well, as more angels have come to gather around you, more effort is being made to uphold you, the beautiful light of God continues to shine upon you.

You will find yourself thinking in different ways, expressing yourself through the eyes of the soul rather than the mind. In this way, it may seem that you have changed in a way that is somewhat disconcerting. Yet indeed, it is not. It is merely different. There is adjustment. There is a need for time to be truly within the alignment with God, to understand the power of your own soul which has been strengthened and increased with God's Love while you have been in prayer together and to understand the consequences of this as your beautiful souls begin to awaken and emerge in surprising and wonderful ways. Your souls will be truly those gracious lights that God intends for you to be.

Much has been given, my friends. Very much, indeed. You will find that within you is a deep need to acknowledge God and to serve God in whatever way that you have been guided and you feel is in harmony with your being. These things, too, will come. This way of being in the world will come to you. This will spark changes as well in your behaviour, in that which you find important, in all that is in your life and how you express yourself within your life.

My dear and beloved friends, I again want to thank you for your efforts together and how you brought great light to the world. We worked together, did we not? We worked in harmony and synchronicity in such a way that our souls resonated together with the great song to God, bringing His Love and Light forward to all of us and to many more whom you are not aware. Many blessings, beloved souls, many blessings have been brought because of your prayers and your efforts. Though there have been some difficult consequences of your coming together, I suggest that you think of the benefits that have come and how this far outweighs some inconveniences and difficulties.

Beloved souls, you will continue to come together now that you have had this experience together. You have also strengthened your time in this format, in this way together. You continue to progress upward and in greater light. So the blessings flow, my friends. So, it flows beautifully and intensely. It shall get brighter, more powerful, more beautiful and filled with more love and light. This I promise you, my friends. This I promise you.

May you be blessed. May you come to know the true blessings of your soul. May you come to see the great flow of love that comes to you and may you come to acknowledge and absorb this blessing. God bless you, beloved souls. God bless you. I am Matthew and I love you.

2023-10-17-AF-Matthew

#### You Are Changed

Spirit: Orion Medium: Al Fike Date:October 20, 2023Location:Sechelt, B.C.

I'm your friend, Orion. Are you looking forward to the new world that will emerge in your consciousness, my friends, as your vision grows, as your perceptions deepen, as your soul awakens? So this new vision will come upon you, a dawning of a new age and era that is of God's creation where the power of man's creation becomes, not diminished, but transformed and blessed so that through humanity's free will, they will be able to help co-create a new world with God. This is coming. You will come to know your world from a different perspective. You will come to know one another from a different perspective. You will come to know one another from a different perspective. You will come to know you.

Indeed, the life that you have lived up to this time will be shifting to another locum of perspective and understanding. You've begun the process with your prayers together and you will continue to awaken to this new way. It will not come overnight but it is coming. The momentum is already building. The travel along this road is assured and you will find yourself, each one, experiencing life from a different perspective, even unique to one another.

My beloved friends, there is much to discover, much to know about yourselves, much to know about each other, much to know about God's creation. It is an endless journey as you well know and indeed you take a few footsteps upon it. And do you not feel awakened, energized, enthusiastic with a deep desire to open to all that God has to give to you? For you have tapped into the source of all that is of God's creation and in this, many surprises and blessings are destined to come to you. You will not be confused, lost and disoriented. Rather you will come to accept these things through the wisdom of your soul, awakening to that which is not normally of your material mind but things that emerge from your soul mind.

In this, you will readily integrate the two. You will add to your material consciousness, your idea of what life is and what reality is will be augmented and slowly shift toward that which is of God. This is what you have prayed for, my beautiful friends. This is the road you continue to travel upon. Although for some of you who are very new to this path, this may seem like a somewhat strange message, but I say to you that all along we have been encouraging you upon this program, this reality so that you may accept it more readily. That you may apply it more easily, and may live it in harmony with God's laws of love.

Expect the unexpected, my dear friends. Expect to be carried along a road over a mighty bridge to a new place, a place that is beautiful, a place that is still part of this Earth but not in terms of what man

has created, but in terms of what God has created. You will come to understand and appreciate and see from this perspective. It will give you great joy, great insight, great understanding and compassion, all things that you require to live in this world of yours in light. For that is what is intended, to live in light, to be the light and to express the light wherever you go. Whatever aspect of your life you are engaged upon, that it may be in greater harmony with God's laws, that it may reflect love, that it may indeed be in sync and in juxtaposition with God's Will. So that what you do will be guided and in harmony, always.

My beloved friends, may you find your way upon this path that is now laid out for you clearly and succinctly. It is for you to discover it, to accept it and embrace it. It is for you to know it as your path, to adopt it as your path, to truly be in harmony with it. God will not force anything upon you, my beloved friends. But He lays the opportunities clearly, in front of you. It is for you to step forward, willingly, joyfully with great curiosity and enthusiasm, just as you did when you arrived together in that gathering so blessed. So you must step upon these paths laid out before you and be blessed by this new request from God, to be upon a path that will surely lead to a new world, a new way of being and a new you.

This transformation must take place. It is necessary. It is important for you to walk upon it gleefully. Do not be frightened, suspicious or hold back but know that the greatest of blessings is before you, that God's Love will continue to enlighten you, that the truth shall be yours in ever greater measure, my beloved friends. You will know the way. Truly, you will know the way.

May God bless you and keep you in His Love. I am close. Many are even closer than before your retreat and shall continue their vigilance and their prayer vigil with you so that you may integrate and accept what is being given and what shall be given so powerfully, thoroughly, and profoundly to each one of you. God bless you my friends, keeping you in His Love. Orion loves you. Many love you. Precious souls of God, you are blessed. God bless you. God bless you.

2023-10-20-AF-Orion

# Angels are Helping us Shift from Mind Consciousness to Soul Consciousness

Spirit:Luke and JesusMedium:Al Fike

Date:October 22, 2023Location:Sechelt, B.C.

Your soul is changing. Beloved friends, I am Luke. For as you continue to seek this agent of change, the elixir of God's Soul, so you will be changed and you will know the extent and breadth of God's Love for each of you. This change comes gradually. Just as the physical components of your body change with time, the components of your soul change as you continue to seek this love. In this way often the observation of this change is not readily available to you. The awareness comes gently and you progress incrementally as the power of love infiltrates all parts of your soul and in time, all parts of your being.

Yet, as everything in God's Universe and creation, progress is inevitable. Whether the individual progresses and purifies in the natural love that is a part of each one or whether the decision to walk the Divine Path, to receive that great gift from God, is your decision and your dedication. You are changing and indeed, the weight and pace of that change is very much dependent upon your choices, your free will gift. The more you pray, the more intensely you pray, the more you are willing to accept those changes within you, the more you become attuned to your soul. In so doing, being attuned to God, then the awareness dawns within your consciousness.

For the vast majority of you upon the earthly plane, the pursuit of the soul is only an awareness that is partially with you and dependent upon your focus. Many of you are focussed upon the material world and the demands that come with the material world. Since you inhabit a physical body, the distractions of that body are great. And since you have a material mind the distractions of that mind are great. There are many factors that hold you from soul consciousness. Yet when you come to pray as you do today, are you not praying to shift your consciousness toward the soul and away from the material? That you can be liberated from the material conditions which weigh you down and fully be within the joyful awakening of the soul. We come to assist you, we in the Celestial Kingdom and those bright spirits and others who come to pray with you and be with you in these sacred times so that we might help you and uplift you. We may help you make that transition of consciousness from material to truly spiritual.

We pray together, my beloved friends. We pray for truth. We pray for enlightenment. We pray for the power of God's Love to truly shift our consciousness in such a way that we are not subject to this pendulum of awareness, material-spiritual, material-spiritual. That the pendulum may shift to the spiritual more often and more powerfully. For is this not the way in which the world might change? Not by the minds of men and all their inventions and creativity toward material resourcefulness. Rather

it is the soul of each individual seeking the great source of nourishment and love which is God. In this way, true change happens within the individual and with the individual changing and transforming. So the effects of this will be known in the world. For you will express these things in powerful ways, in ways that influence others, in ways that bring greater light to a darkened world.

My beloved friends, it is your transformation, your efforts and your dedications that will change the world. Humanity may prattle about in all the business that they create together, thinking that they are progressing. Certainly in a material sense, there is much progress. Unfortunately, the material will not solve the deep aches and longings within the soul, that true self that continues on through life and beyond the material. These things will not be healed and rendered into light through material effort. It requires power of the soul, the awareness and understanding of the soul, not that of the material mind and all its machinations, but the giving way of the material mind toward the consciousness of soul.

Here we are together, my beloved friends, trying to nurture soul consciousness, making efforts to extend our longings, our very being to God, seeking the nourishment that God has waiting for us. Drinking of these living waters deeply, seeking all change that may come from this and adopting these changes into our material life, into our material consciousness. It is a great effort and ambition and one which we come to help you with. For we know the destiny of humanity, the destiny to move toward that which is of light, of greater spiritual understanding, purpose and expression. One that includes love as the primary motivator for all who engage upon this journey of light and it shall come, my friends, it shall come.

Yet, you are needed greatly. You are needed purposefully to bring the change to humanity that requires in order to heal themselves and to heal the world. We persist as do you, my beloved friends. We shall pray together for the upliftment of mankind, for the awakening of humanity, for all that is required to heal, to bring peace and to bring truth and love into the world as an active and potent agent of change.

We are with you. So I am with you. I am Luke and I pray with you today in the hope that the world will benefit and change and be of light. God bless you, my friends. God bless you deeply within your soul. Come to know this experience, this expression, this Touch from God and you will see as I see. You will know as I know. You will be joyed with the knowing, seeing and feeling. God bless you, beloved souls. God bless you in His Love. My love is with you. God bless you.

# Children of Peace are Needed

# Spirit: Jesus

God's children of love, I come to bless each one of you in the glories of His Love. We shall be uplifted. We shall carry the torch of truth into the world. It is our work, my beloved and beautiful brothers and sisters. This is what God designates for us, to bring the blessings of truth to humanity, to be the light bringers for the world. My beloveds, I am with you and I bless you. I am your brother and friend, Jesus. We walk together upon the shores of God's blessings. We shall be together for all eternity. God bless you, my beloveds.

I am with you. Know me. Feel my love for you and know that God's Love for you is greater still. As we walk together, we shall know this. Beyond a shadow of a doubt we shall know this. God bless you, beloveds. I love you and I bless you with peace.

2023-10-22-AF-Luke and Jesus

# We Are with You in Love and Joy!

Spirit:	Keea Atta Kem
Medium:	Al Fike
Date:	October 24, 2023
Location:	Sechelt, B.C.

We have joy. We have joy because you have come together in loving harmony. We have joy because we see the increased dedication that you all have toward this beautiful truth. We have joy because we can come and be with you in prayer and you know of our presence, and you feel the Love of God binding us together. I am Keea Atta Kem and I come to acknowledge each one of you, joyfully so, in your efforts and prayers to bring greater light to the world.

Yes you have made a difference, beloved souls. You have shifted the consciousness of humanity one more notch toward greater light because of your prayerful dedications, because of your presence together. We have worked together to bring the glory and light of God's Presence into the world more fully.

My beloved friends, there is much work to do as you well know. There is much more joy to be had in your efforts. As you continue to come together in Circles of Light, know that each time you come further along the ladder of light together helping one another. You are one another's gatekeepers. You are one another's helpers. You are one another's friends upon this journey. Be sure of this, beloved souls. Be sure of the joy within your soul, the sure knowledge of the truth that is ignited there in love.

For how beautiful you are. How beautiful you are to God, and how you will continue to make this journey together in loving servitude to our Heavenly Father, to one another, to your brothers and sisters. This is what will sustain the truth, my beloved friends. It is your dedication and prayer. It is your desire to serve and to be lights in the world. As you continue to grow in this, you will bring along others who will join you, pray with you and be with you in this light.

My beloved friends, so much is given, shall be given, and will unfold. Yes, your prayers for miracles, manifestations and blessings will be realised, my beloved friends. In joy, we acknowledge one another. In joy, we are friends along the road of truth. In joy, we truly understand the power of love that will change everything. For it is God's Will, God's blessings and God's plan that all these things will come about.

I know that to you upon the earthly plane, this seems to take a very long time. In truth, if you consider the journey and history of humanity, this is but a blink of an eye. Within that blink the miracles will happen, the blessings will be given and the light shall proliferate. The darkness shall fall away. This is and will be God's blessing upon you and God's plan for you. The Love that He has will continue to grow and awaken each of you in deeper truth and light.

God bless you, my beloved friends. We are in joy together. We are in love together. It shall be forever. Forever and ever the joy shall increase, the love shall increase, the light shall increase and the truth shall increase in the journey that God has for all of us toward at-onement with His great Soul.

God bless you, my friends. I love you so dearly. The joy I have for each one of you, seeing as the light increases, as you grow in love, as you come to acknowledge the truth more fully, so I feel such joy for you, for all of us. For we have gained more potential angels to enter into the Celestial Kingdom. You shall be there in time. In time, my beloveds, we shall be joined together in embrace, in love, in all that is good and wondrous in the Kingdom of God. We shall be there together forever. God bless you. I am Keea Atta Kem and I love you. God bless you, beloved souls.

#### 2023-10-24-AF-Keea Atta Kem

# Videos from Retreat

Laurelville Opening Day

https://youtu.be/uh2GnxNsaEI

Laurelville Day 2 https://youtu.be/mpIZb5Pp-II

Laurelville Day 3 https://youtu.be/jwMbj3BezAo

Laurelville Day 4 https://youtu.be/MwNTFFmfbpo

Laurelville Closing Day https://youtu.be/6IcXfAfDt1I